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MCLA 
John Randall Jefferies, Esq. (Bar No. 3512) 
Brandi M. Planet, Esq. (Bar No. 11710) 
FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.  
300 S. Fourth Street, Suite 1400 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 692-8000 
Facsimile:  (702) 692-8099 
E-mail: rjefferies@fclaw.com  
             bplanet@fclaw.com 
Attorneys for APCO Construction, Inc.  

and Safeco Insurance Company of America 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEVADA, LLC, a  
Nevada limited liability company,  

Plaintiff,  

v.  

APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada 
corporation; SAFECO INSURANCE 
COMPANY OF AMERICA; DOES I through 
X; and BOE BONDING COMPANIES, I 
through X,  Defendants. 

Case No.: A-16-730091-C  
Dept. No.: XVII  

  HEARING REQUESTED 

APCO CONSTRUCTION, INC.’S AND 
SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF 

AMERICA’S MOTION FOR 
CLARIFICATION AND/OR AMENDMENT

TO FINDINGS OF FACT AND 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

APCO Construction, Inc. and Safeco Insurance Company of America (collectively referred 

to as “APCO”), by and through their attorneys, Fennemore Craig, P.C., hereby move this Court for 

an Order reconsidering and amending the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (“Findings”) 

entered by this Court on July 10, 2019. Given the factual and legal findings and rulings, Helix is 

not entitled to any extended general conditions.  Alternatively, given the Court’s specific findings, 

APCO respectfully submits that the Court applied incorrect figures that effectively award Helix 

Electric of Nevada, LLC (“Helix”) Project Manager figures that are based on billed and 

unsupported rates and not the actual job cost figures that Court found were the most appropriate 

measure of Project Manager expenses.  In short, the Court did not use the column on Exhibit D5 

that reflects the actual job costs for a project manager who was largely not involved during 

Case Number: A-16-730091-B

Electronically Filed
7/15/2019 1:36 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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the “compensable time period.”1  For these reasons, APCO requests reconsideration and 

amendment of the Findings. 

This Motion is supported by the attached memorandum of points and authorities, all 

exhibits attached hereto and all papers and pleadings on file herein. 

DATED July 15, 2019. 

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C. 

By: Brandi M. Planet  
John Randall Jefferies, Esq. (Bar No. 3512) 
Brandi M. Planet, Esq. (Bar No, 11710) 
Chelsie A. Adams, Esq. (Bar No. 13058) 
FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.  
300 S. 4th Street, Suite 1400 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Attorneys for APCO Construction, Inc.  
and Safeco Insurance Company of America 

1 The “compensable time period” is May to October 2013. See Findings, ¶115, which is attached hereto as 
Attachment A.  
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

APCO and Helix were involved in a contract dispute that ended with the parties going to 

trial in June 2019. After several days of testimony and review of the evidence, the Court awarded 

Helix $43,992.39 in damages and $1,960.85 in interest pursuant to NRS 338. The Court relied on  

Exhibit D5 to calculate Helix’s damages, noting that costs related to Helix’s superintendent were 

deleted from the calculation.2

A. Helix is not entitled to general conditions damages based on the no damage for  
delay provision. 

APCO requests reconsideration of the damage award given the Court’s finding that “the 

provision limiting damages after a delay does not permit the recovery of extended general 

conditions” because the “delay was not so unreasonable to amount to abandonment.” Findings,

¶114. See also, Findings ¶ 32 (“The Project was never abandoned by CNLV.”)  The damages 

Helix sought in this lawsuit were solely related to its extended general conditions. Following the 

Court’s finding that recovery for extended general conditions is impermissible, there is no 

evidence or legal basis supporting an award for the extended general conditions based on the 

Court’s own findings. 

B. The Court awarded Helix project manager costs based on unsupported 
billings and not the actual job costs. 

In the Findings, the Court specifically highlighted and enforced Paragraph 7.1 of the 

Subcontract and confirmed that “[t]he Parties’ Contract requires proof of actual cost increase.” 

Findings, ¶17.  Focusing exclusively on the project manager costs, the evidence confirmed that 

Kurt Williams was Helix’s only project manager and that he was reassigned to another project in 

approximately March 2013.  Relatedly, the Court found that Mr. Williams did not sign in at the 

site and that “[b]y his own admission, Williams’ time devoted to the Project was not accurately 

tracked in Helix’s certified payroll reports, only Helix’s job cost report.”  Findings, ¶ 22.  That 

2 Findings, fn. 5, referencing  trial Exhibit D5, which is attached hereto as Attachment B for the 
Court’s convenience.  
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means that any recovery for Williams’ time would need to be reflected in the job cost reports to 

satisfy the subcontract’s actual cost requirement.  The Court rejected any suggestion that Helix 

was entitled to four hours of everyday for Williams’ time. That is what Helix’s unsupported 

billings were based on, which the Court rejected.  

After limiting Helix’s recovery to actual costs reflected in the job cost, the Court cited 

Exhibit D5. As shown in the chart below, for each month of the compensable period, Exhibit D5 

showed the unsupported amount Helix was requesting for the project manager and the 

corresponding actual costs reflected in the job costs.  For the project manager, the Court selected 

the wrong column for the project manager costs and awarded Helix damages based on the amount 

Helix billed rather than the actual costs. Findings, fn. 5.  Applying the correct actual cost column, 

the project manager actual costs are as follows: 

ACTUAL PROJECT MANAGER COSTS3

May 2013 $651.28
June 2013 $4,829.98
July 2013 $4,992.72 

August 2013 $1,845.11
September 2013 $1,410.95
October 2013 $1,242.71
TOTAL: $14,972.75

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

NRCP 52(b) provides that upon a motion, the Court “may amend its findings—or make 

additional findings—and may amend the judgment accordingly.”4 Motions related to amending 

findings must be filed no later than 28 days following service of a written notice of entry of 

judgment. Id. “Further, findings of fact shall not be set aside unless they are clearly erroneous and 

not supported by substantial evidence.” Bahena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co., 126 Nev. 243, 

3 See, Exhibit D5 and Exhibit D3 (attached hereto as Attachment C) showing the Helix billed 
amounts for extended general conditions based on four hours every day for the project manager 
versus Helix’s partial job cost reports. D3 cross references the bates labeled pages of the actual job 
cost report that was marked as Exhibit 51. Each referenced page in Exhibit D3 supports the tabled 
actual project manager costs.  
4 To the extent the Court intended the Findings to be a judgment, Defendants alternatively bring 
this Motion pursuant to NRCP 59(e), which permits a motion to “alter or amend a judgment” to be 
filed within 28 days after notice of the entry of the judgment.  
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254, 235 P.3d 592, 599 (2010); see also, NRCP 52(a).  Since the Court entered its Findings on 

July 10, 2019, this motion is timely.  

Using the proper column of Exhibits D5 and D3, Helix’s actual cost for the project 

manager was $14,972.75 during the compensable period. That figure is based on the job cost 

reports, which Williams cited and the Court found was the only supported cost. See Exhibits D5, 

D3 and 51. 

In addition to the finding that the Project was never abandoned such that the no damage for 

delay clause was enforceable, APCO would further submit that this $14,972.75 figure represents 

Helix’s total project manager costs administering the original contract and change order work that 

was being performed by Prietzel.  Helix never established how these costs increased due to the 

delay.  In any event, through the misapplication of Exhibit D5, the Court awarded Helix $35,100 

for Williams’ time based on the unsupported claim/billed amount, not the actual costs. Findings,  

fn. 5, Exhibit D5 and Exhibit D3. This award is not based Helix’s actual costs and is not supported 

by “substantial evidence”. Bahena, 254, 599. “The general rule…is that when there is substantial 

evidence to sustain the judgment, it will not be disturbed. An exception to the general rule obtains 

where, upon all the evidence, it is clear that a wrong conclusion has been reached.”  Brechan v. 

Scott, 92 Nev. 633, 634, 555 P.2d 1230, 1230 (1976).   

As found by the Court, APCO should not be required to pay for costs Helix did not 

actually incur.  APCO therefore requests that this Court amend its award by reducing the amount 

of damages for the project manager from $31,500 to $14,972.75. This will ensure that Helix is 

compensated only for its actual costs as the Court found was legally required by the Subcontract 

and factually appropriate given the inaccuracies in the certified payroll reports.  Based on the 

Court’s specific findings, Helix’s total actual costs for the compensable period (excluding 

superintendent costs)5 is $25,351.36. See Exhibits D5 and D3. There is no evidence that supports a 

higher award based on an unsupported billed amount.  If the Court is not going to enforce the no 

damage for delay provision, APCO is entitled to and respectfully requests that the damages be 

5 The Court excluded these damages because the superintendent was paid for his time under 
approved change orders. Findings, ¶116.
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reduced to $25,351.36.  Until this issue is resolved, the Court cannot determine the prevailing 

party or entitlement to fees and costs. 

III. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons set forth above, APCO seeks reconsideration and and/or amendment of the 

Court’s damage calculation.  

DATED July 15, 2019. 

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C. 

By: Brandi M. Planet  
John Randall Jefferies, Esq. (Bar No. 3512) 
Brandi M. Planet, Esq. (Bar No, 11710) 
FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.  
300 S. 4th Street, Suite 1400 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Fennemore Craig, P.C., and further certify that 

the: APCO CONSTRUCTION, INC.’S AND SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF 

AMERICA’S MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION AND/OR AMENDMENT TO FINDINGS 

OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW was served by electronically filing via Odyssey File 

& Serve e-filing system and serving all parties with an email address on record, pursuant to the 

Administrative Order 14-2 and Rule 9 N.E.F.C. 

DATED: July 15, 2019. 

/s/ Morganne Westover 
An Employee of Fennemore Craig, P.C. 
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OPPC 
CARY B. DOMINA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 10567 
RONALD J. COX, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12723 
JEREMY HOLMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14379 
PEEL BRIMLEY LLP 
3333 E. Serene Avenue, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89074-6571 
Telephone: (702) 990-7272 
Facsimile: (702) 990-7273 
cdomina@peelbrimley.com 
rcox{ll{peelbrimlev.com 
jholmes@peelbrimley.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Helix Electric of Nevada, LLC 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEVADA, LLC, a 
Nevada limited liability company, 

CASENO.: A-16-730091-B 
DEPT. NO. : XI 

Plaintiff, 
vs. 

APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation; 
SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF 
AMERICA; DOES I through X; and BOE 
BONDING COMPANIES I through X, 

Defendants. 

HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEV ADA, 
LLC'S: 

(I) OPPOSITION TO APCO
CONSTRUCTION, INC.'S
AND SAFE INSURANCE
COMPANY OF
AMERICA'S MOTION
FOR CLARIFICATION
AND/OR AMENDMENT
TO FINDINGS OF FACT
AND CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW;AND

(11) COUNTERMOTION FOR
AMENDMENT TO
FINDINGS OF FACT AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Plaintiff, HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEV ADA, LLC ("Helix") by and through its attorneys, 

the law firm of Peel Brimley, hereby submits its (i) Opposition to Defendants APCO 

CONSTRUCTION'S ("APCO") and SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA'S 

("Safeco") Motion for Clarification and/or Amendment to Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 

Case Number: A-16-730091-B

Electronically Filed
7/29/2019 4:53 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Law (the "Motion"); and (ii) Countermotion for Amendment to Findings of Fact and Conclusions 

of Law. 

This Opposition and Countermotion are made and based on the following Memorandum of 

Points and Authorities, the pleadings, exhibits, and papers on file herein, and any argument that the 

Court entertains on this matter. 
4\... 

Dated this J,1 day of July, 2019. 

PEE~~ 

CARY B. DOMINA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 10567 
RONALD J. COX, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12723 
JEREMY HOLMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14379 
3333 E. Serene Avenue, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89074-6571 
Telephone: (702) 990-7272 
cdomina@peel brimlev .com 
rcox@peelbrimlev.com 
jholnies@peel brimlev .com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Helix Electric a/Nevada, LLC 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

APCO's Motion is based largely upon what Helix believes is a typographical error in the 

Court's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as well as several incorrect representations of 

this Court's findings at trial. APCO also argues that Helix is entitled to no damages, due to the no 

damage for delay clause which the Court found was enforceable. Helix, however, is entitled to 

damages despite the existence of the no damage for delay provision in the contract because NRS 

338.485(2)(c)(4) renders such a provision void if the public body significantly extends the duration 

of the public work, which is exactly what the City of North Las Vegas ("CNLV") did here. In 

addition, Helix is entitled to damages due to APCO's breach of the covenant of good faith and fair 

dealing when it settled all claims for overhead costs directly with CNLV, thus barring Helix from 

pursuing its claim. Helix is also entitled to recover its costs incurred for Kirk Williams' time on the 

Project as Mr. Williams' testimony at trial established that the job cost reports did not accurately 

represent his time on the Project and he testified, credibly, to the amount of time he spent working 

on the Project throughout its duration. APCO attempts to support its arguments by stating that the 

Comi rejected Mr. Williams' testimony and Helix's billings. However, these asse1iions are 

completely unsuppmied by the record and provide no basis upon which this Court should grant the 

Motion. As a result, APCO's Motion must be denied. 1 

19 II. 

20 

LEGAL ARGUMENTS 

A. Helix is Entitled to Damages Because (i) NRS 338.485(2)(c)(4) Renders No 
Damage for Delay Clauses Void when a Public Entity Significantly Increases 
the Duration of a Public Work; and (ii) APCO Breached of the Covenant of 
Good Faith and Fair Dealing, Preventing Helix from Pursuing its Claim 

21 

22 

23 When ruling on the applicability of the no damages for delay provision in the Agreement, 

24 the Court found that the "delay was not so unreasonable to amount to abandonment," thereby not 

25 triggering the exception within NRS 338.485(2)(c)(l). The Court did not, however, address the 

26 other, stronger, argument raised by Helix (and included in its Proposed Findings of Fact and 

27 
1 To avoid potential confusion, while not appearing in the following order in this Opposition, true and coITect copies 

28 of the excerpts of the Trial Transcripts cited herein have been attached to this Opposition and Countermotion as follows: 
Day One is attached as Exhibit l; Day Two is attached as Exhibit 2; and Day Three is attached as Exhibit 3. 
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Conclusions of Law) that NRS 338.485(2)( c )( 4) also applied and renders the no damage for delay 

provision of the Agreement void and unenforceable. 

NRS 338.485(2)(c)(4) states that a clause that acts to waive, release or extinguish a claim 

or right for damages that the contractor may otherwise possess or acquire as a result of a delay that 

is "[ c ]aused by a decision by the public body to significantly add to the scope or duration of the 

public work" is against public policy and is void and unenforceable. This argument was raised by 

Helix at trial and included in its Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, but only 

Helix's alternative argument regarding abandonment was addressed by the Court.2 

The Project's duration was scheduled for 12 months yet, after numerous delays and changes 

made by CNL V, the Project took approximately 21 months to complete. Nearly doubling the 

duration of the Project is certainly a "significant" addition to the duration of the public work. At 

trial, Joemel Llamado, the construction manager for CNL V during the Project, testified that CNL V 

granted APCO an extension of time of 180 non-compensatory days and 165 compensatory days.3 

In his testimony, Mr. Llamado stated (i) CNLV made the ultimate decision to extend the duration 

of the Project; and (ii) he believed that an extension of 180 days to the Project originally scheduled 

to last one year was a significant addition to the duration of the Project.4 In reality, the Project was 

actually delayed approximately 287 days. Furthermore, this Court also acknowledged that CNL V 

made numerous changes to the Project throughout its duration in its FFCL and that these changes 

impacted the parties.5 As a result, while CNLV may not have abandoned the Project, it certainly 

significantly added to the duration of the public work, triggering NRS 338.485(2)(c)(4) and 

rendering the no damage for delay clause void and unenforceable. Accordingly, the Court's award 

of damages to Helix for its extended general conditions is proper. 

Furthe1more, APCO ignores the fact that the Court did not award Helix damages under its 

breach of contract claim, but rather under Helix's claim for the breach of the implied covenant of 

good faith and fair dealing. The Court rightfully found that APCO could not actively prevent Helix 

2 See FFCL, at ,r 114; Exhibit 3, 110:1-7. 
3 Exhibit I, 141:4-144:9. 
4 Id., 141:14-142:19. 
5 See FFCL, at if 53. 
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from recovering monies from CNL V for its extended general conditions by acting in bad faith and 

then bar Helix's claim against APCO based on a contractual provision. 

The Nevada Supreme Comi has long held that even if the language of a contract is followed, 

if "one party to the contract deliberately countervenes the intention and spirit of the contract, that 

party can incur liability for breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing." Hilton 

Hotels v. Butch Lewis Productions, 107 Nev. 226,232, 808 P.2d 919, 922-23 (1991). There is no 

question that APCO acted against the spirit of the contract and prevented Helix from recovering its 

extended general conditions when it settled with CNL V and was paid its own delay damages. As 

such, Helix's only vehicle to recover those costs after APCO' s settlement with CNL V was through 

APCO. APCO cannot shield itself from the consequences of its bad faith acts by hiding behind a 

contract provision in the contract it "deliberately countervene[ d] the intention and spirit of." 

B. APCO's Arguments Regarding Helix's Project Manager Costs Are Based on 
Conclusions Not Reached by This Court and are Contradicted bv the 
Evidence Presented at Trial 

APCO's arguments regarding Helix's award of damages for Kirk Williams' time appears 

to arise from a mere misstatement in the Court's FFCL. In Paragraph 22 of the FFCL, the Court 

states that Mr. Williams' time was only accurately tracked through Helix's Job Cost Report. 

However, this is the opposite of what Mr. Williams' testified to at trial.6 Mr. Williams testified that 

the time he recorded in the Job Cost Report was not accurate, as he was tracking his time on other 

projects despite working the amount claimed on the Project each day. 7 Mr. Williams testified that 

in order to limit the perceived costs on the Project, he would track his time spent on the Project to 

other projects because the appearance of going over budget on the Project would negatively reflect 

on him.8 In other words, the Job Cost Report captured only a fraction of the time he actually spent 

on the Project and is therefore not an accurate reflection of his time and Helix's costs. Instead, the 

accurate indicator of Mr. Williams' time is the claim for extended overhead that Mr. Williams 

himself put together contemporaneous with the Project. Mr. Williams testified credibly regarding 

the amount of work he completed daily for the Project.9 APCO also appears to insinuate that Mr. 

6 Exhibit 1, 75:18-25; 77:5-9 
7 Id. at 76:2 - 77:25. 
8 Id. at 76:13-23. 
9 Id. at 66:22 - 67:9. 
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Williams was reassigned to another project in March 2013 when, in reality, Mr. Williams worked 

on both the Project and a new project simultaneously, never stopping work on the Project until its 

completion in October of2013. 10 In fact, Mr. Williams testified specifically that having the new 

job start "doesn't change the fact of the duties that [he] still was required to do" on the Project. 11 

APCO argues that the Court "rejected any suggestion that Helix was entitled to four hours 

of everyday [sic] for Williams' time." This Court never made such a ruling. APCO further argues 

that the Corui rejected Helix's billings, despite the Court awarding Helix the entirety of the amounts 

claimed in those billings other than for Ray Prietzel's time. Finally, APCO asserts that the Court 

limited Helix's recovery to the actual costs reflected in the job cost report. Again, this plainly 

contradicts the testimony at trial and the actual decision given by the Court which made no 

reference to limiting Helix to the amounts contained in the Job Cost Report. In fact, a significant 

amount of time at trial was dedicated to explaining why numerous costs incurred by Helix would 

not be reflected in the Job Cost Report. For instance, neither Helix's job trailer or project truck are 

included in Helix's Job Cost Report, yet Helix actually incurred costs for these items on the Project 

and the Court included them in its award. 

APCO' s arguments are based entirely off incorrect asse1iions regarding what this Court held 

and completely ignores the testimony of Mr. Williams that was introduced to support Helix's 

claimed Project Manager costs. While APCO complains that "substantial evidence" does not 

support the Court's award, Mr. Williams' testimony was persuasive and completely supported the 

claimed costs. 

21 III. 

22 

CONCLUSION 

APCO's Motion should be denied, as substantial evidence supp01is the Court's decision to 

23 award Helix damages for the time attributable to Kirk Williams, and the majority of APCO's 

24 arguments for reducing that award are based upon asserted findings this Court did not make. 

25 Furthermore, because the Court overlooked Helix's stronger argument regarding NRS 

26 338.485(2)(c)(4), even if APCO were correct that the damages awarded by the Comi would be 

27 

28 10 Id. at 77:15-25. 
11 Id. at 77:21-23. 
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barred by the no damage for delay provision, that provision is void and unenforceable. 
-r"' 

Dated this [ 4 day of July, 2019. 

PEE~' 

CARY B. DOMINA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 10567 
RONALD J. COX, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12723 
JEREMY HOLMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14379 
3333 E. Serene Avenue, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89074-6571 
Telephone: (702) 990-7272 
cdomina(@peelbrimlev.com 
rcox<mpeel brimlev .com 
jholmes<mpeelbrimlev .com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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COUNTERMOTION FOR AMENDMENT OF FINDINGS OF FACT AND 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

I. INTRODUCTION 

While APCO believes the Court erred in its decision by awarding Helix more than was 

supported by evidence at Trial, Helix believes that the Comi actually overlooked several important 

issues and evidence when reaching its conclusion that led to Helix being awarded less than it should 

have been. First, the Court did not address one of the two NRS 338.485 arguments presented by 

Helix to render the no damage for delay clause unenforceable. 

Second, Helix believes the Court erred in limiting Helix's recovery to the same 

compensable period APCO accepted through its settlement with CNL V. Helix believes the Court 

overlooked the fact that APCO made a business decision to accept CNLV's settlement offer which 

excluded four months of its claim for extended general conditions, even though Joe Pelan, APCO' s 

General Manager, testified that he disagreed with CNLV's decision to eliminate those four months. 

Moreover, APCO never even informed Helix of CNLV's determination of noncompensable days, 

let alone allowed Helix the opportunity to dispute it, making it improper for Helix to be bound by 

those same terms. 

Lastly, the Court appears to have misconstrued Mr. Prietzel's testimony, as it found that he 

was not engaged in superintendent duties from the period of May through October 2013 simply 

because he was not supervising other Helix employees. However, Mr. Prietzel clearly testified that 

he continued to perform superintendent duties and responsibilities even though he was the sole 

Helix employee on the Project. Specifically, Mr. Prietzel testified extensively that the 

superintendent duties he continued to carry out throughout the tail end of the Project took up at 

least half of his day, every day. 

Accordingly, Helix believes this Court should amend its Findings of Fact and Conclusions 

of Law and award Helix the full amount of its Claim. 

Ill 

Ill 

II I 
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1 II. 

2 

LEGAL ARGUMENTS 

A. The Court Overlooked Helix's Arguments Regarding NRS 338.485(2)(c)(4) 
and Should Have Found the No Damage for Delay Provision Void and 
Unenforceable 

3 

4 
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As was argued above in the Opposition, Helix believes the Court overlooked the second 

prong of the NRS 338.485 argument made by Helix at trial. NRS 338.485(2)(c)(4) states that a 

clause that acts to waive, release or extinguish a claim or right for damages that the contractor may 

otherwise possess or acquire as a result of a delay that is "[ c ]aused by a decision by the public body 

to significantly add to the scope or duration of the public work" is against public policy and is void 

and unenforceable. 

The Project's duration was scheduled for 12 months yet, after numerous delays and changes 

made by CNL V, the Project took approximately 21 months to complete. Nearly doubling the 

duration of the Project is certainly a "significant" addition to the duration of the public work. At 

trial, Joemel Llamado testified that CNL V granted APCO an extension of time of 180 non­

compensatory days and 165 compensatory days. 12 In his testimony, Mr. Llamado stated (i) CNL V 

made the ultimate decision to extend the duration of the Project; and (ii) he believed that an 

extension of 180 days to the Project originally scheduled to last one year was a significant addition 

to the duration of the Project. 13 In reality, the Project was actually delayed approximately 287 days. 

Furthermore, this Court also acknowledged that CNL V made numerous changes to the Project 

throughout its duration in its FFCL and that these changes impacted the parties. 14 As a result, while 

CNL V may not have abandoned the Project, it certainly significantly added to the duration of the 

public work, triggering NRS 338.485(2)(c)(4) and rendering the no damage for delay clause void 

and unenforceable. 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

12 Exhibit 1, 141:4- 144:9. 
13 Id, 141:14-142:19. 
14 See FFCL, at ,r 53. 
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B. The Court Overlooked the Fact that APCO Made a Business Decision to Settle 
with CNL V for Less than its Claim for Extended General Conditions and 
Never Provided Helix with an Opportunity to Dispute CNLV's Offered 
Compensable Period 

The Court held in its FFCL that Helix's recovery for extended overhead costs would be 

limited in the same manner that CNLV limited APCO's recovery. Helix believes the Court 

overlooked both the fact that Joe Pelan testified that APCO made a business decision (i) not to the 

challenge CNLV's position regarding the four months for non-compensable delay; and (ii) not to 

inform Helix of its settlement with CNLV or provide Helix with the opportunity to dispute CNLV's 

reduction of the extended overhead claim from nine months to five months. Specifically, when Mr. 

Pelan was asked whether he reached out to Helix to "give them an opportunity to present some sort 

of defense or support to rebut what [CNL V] was saying" regarding CNLV's assertion of 

noncompensable days, he responded "No."15 Through the following exchange, it came to light that 

APCO made a business decision to accept CNL V's settlement offer which significantly reduced its 

claim for extended general conditions, and that it did so without discussing it with Helix or any 

other potentially affected subcontractor: 

Q [Mr. Domina]: Okay. So APCO made a business decision to take 
what was being offered, which admittedly was 119 days less than 
what it was seeking by way of its initial change order request; is that 
correct? 
A [Mr. Pelan]: That's correct. 
Q: Okay. And you made that business decision without including any 
discussion with your subcontractors, including Helix; correct? 
A: That's correct. 16 

Accordingly, Helix's recovery due to APCO's breach of the covenant of good faith and fair 

dealing should not be limited due to APCO's decision not to fight CNLV's assessment, especially 

because Helix was never given an opportunity to rebut CNL V's position. APCO made a business 

decision to accept CNLV's offer and admitted that it never even provided Helix an opportunity to 

dispute this reduction. Helix should not be penalized by having its damages limited due to APCO's 

very same bad faith conduct that forms the basis for those damages. Helix would have disputed 

CNL V's assessment if it had been given the chance, or had Helix even been aware of the dialogue 

15 Exhibit 3, 34: 18-23. 
16 Id. at35:18-36:l. 
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between CNL V and APCO. Instead, APCO prevented Helix from doing so and took the money 

from CNL V and then continued to mislead Helix as to what was happening with Helix's claim. As 

a result, this Court should allow Helix to recover for the full duration of the delay and increase 

Helix's award by $55,584.28. 17 

C. The Court Misinterpreted Ray Prietzel's Testimony and Overlooked the 
Substantial Amount of Superintendent Work that Needed to be Completed for 
the Project Even When Mr. Prietzel Was Operating Without a Crew 

In the Court's FFCL, the Court reasoned that Ray Prietzel's superintendent costs sought by 

Helix were not recoverable because Mr. Prietzel "was completing base Subcontract work and 

change order work," "was paid for his time on site under the approved change orders," and was 

"supervising only himself." While it is true that Mr. Prietzel was the only Helix employee 

completing work on the Project for the last period of the Project, Mr. Prietzel testified exhaustively 

about the amount of superintendent work that was required of him every day regardless of how 

many employees Helix had on site. Mr. Prietzel testified that his time on site was split roughly 50-

50 between engaging in superintendent duties and completing contract/ change order work. 18 In 

fact, Mr. Prietzel testified that as the Project came to a close, the amount of time required for 

superintendent duties would actually increase further. 19 

When this Court asked Mr. Prietzel directly how much time he spent doing actual hands-on 

contract work for the Project after he was the only Helix employee on site, Mr. Prietzel responded: 

I'd say the best -- the best and most honest thing would be about a 
50-50 time. The amount of paperwork that it takes to consume and 
start on that and checklists and the safety responsibilities we have -
because as a single father I'm going home safe - so we have to be 
safe and the actual work, that would be my most honest answer. 20 

While Mr. Prietzel was able to continually spent about half his time completing contract 

and change order work, he was forced to work in an incredibly inefficient manner due to the fact 

that the work was not being released to him in a timely fashion, to the point that it was more cost 

17 Mr. Prietzel's time should be compensable for this period due to the fact that Helix had a full crew working during 
this period regardless of this Court's rulings on the arguments in Section Il(C) below. 
18 Exhibit 2, 19:20 - 20:5. 
19 Id. at 20:3-5. 
20 Id at32:15-20. 
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efficient for him to handle the Project alone.21 

Mr. Prietzel testified that he was required to attend various Project meetings on a frequent 

basis, coordinate and walk the site with various inspectors, complete all the necessary paperwork 

for the Project, work with various other trades to solve problems that arise on a day-to-day basis as 

well as coordinating work with those trades.22 These were duties and responsibilities that only 

superintendents perform. Mr. Prietzel also explained how safety inspections were necessary each 

day and were part of the superintendent's duties, as it was his responsibility to not only make sure 

Helix's employees were safe, but also that any other trades working in the areas where Helix was 

working were also safe. 23 Mr. Prietzel went on to testify that he conducted these inspections and 

undertook all of the general superintendent duties even when he was th~ only Helix employee on 

site.24 Further, as this Court noted, Helix was required to have a superintendent on site at all times 

by the Labor Commissioner and OSHA regulations.25 Kirk Williams also testified to the daily 

duties of Helix's superintendent when explaining why the four hours per day assessment was 

proper. Mr. Williams, who oversaw Mr. Prietzel for the Project, stated: 

Helix requires extensive amounts of paperwork from project 
manager as well as superintendents. That is, I would say, like I said, 
three or four times as much as your average contractor. So that 
there's multiple - there's dailies, there's check-in of equipment, all 
of this has to get signed, submitted into the office, and it has to be 
done daily performance that supervisors - Helix feels supervisors are 
required to do.26 

At no point was Mr. Prietzel's credibility regarding the superintendent work he was required 

to do on a daily basis challenged or impeached. At no point did APCO present arguments or 

evidence that Mr. Prietzel was not actually undertaking the superintendent duties he testified to. As 

such, Helix firmly believes that Mr. Prietzel's time should not have been excluded from Helix's 

recovery, as half, if not more, of Mr. Prietzel's time during the delay period was spent solely on 

superintendent work each day, for which Helix has not been compensated. Accordingly, Helix 

21 Id at 13:9-25. 
22 Exhibit 1, 168:53 - 175: 17. 
23 Id at 169:13-25; 175:24-178:15. 
24 Exhibit 2, 13 :5-8. 
25 FFCL, at~ 26. 
26 Exhibit 1, 67:13-20. 

Page 12 of 14 
JA3722



!"l 
0 t-
0 M 
M -.t t;' 

. t-0 !:: 0 O'I 
~ "1 O'I O'I 
...i ~oo,-, 
...l i;,J -<f'.M 
;... ;;;,Q~ 
i;,J ~ ;:!. '-' 
...i ' .... ,< 
.,.. .... i;,J < ::;;< z:,.. 
c::: w -z+ 
i:t:lZ:OM 
...ii;,.icnt-
WC::: C:::M 
i;,J i;,J i;,J t-
o.,r.llci• 

. 20 
~i;,J~ ~=---!"l M 
!"l 0 
!"l t-,_., 

1 requests that this Court amend its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law to permit the recovery 

2 of Mr. Prietzel's time as claimed by Helix in the amount of $57,400.00 for the period of January 

3 through October 2013. In the event the Court is not convinced that Helix is entitled to recover 

4 damages for the entire delay period as argued above, Helix should be awarded $37,800.00 for the 

5 period of May through October 2013. 

6 III. 

7 

CONCLUSION 

Helix believes this Court overlooked several key areas of testimony in drafting its FFCL 
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that resulted in Helix's recovery being negatively impacted. The evidence at trial supported the 

argument that the no damage for delay provision should be rendered void and unenforceable due 

to CNL V's extension of the Project. The evidence established that Helix should not be bound by 

APCO's decision not to fight CNLV's reduction of compensable days, and refusal to include Helix 

in this decision-making process. And the evidence established that even when Mr. Prietzel was the 

sole Helix employee on-site, he was performing an enormous amount of superintendent duties 

independent of the contract and change order work he was being compensated for by APCO. As a 

result, Helix believes the Court should amend its FFCL and increase Helix's award to the full 

amount sought by Helix, $138,151.40. 
1r 

Dated this 21 day of July, 2019. 

CAR B. OMINA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 10567 
RONALD J. COX, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12723 
JEREMY HOLMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14379 
3333 E. Serene Avenue, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89074-6571 
Telephone: (702) 990-7272 
cdomina@peelbrimlev.com 
rcox@peelbrimlev.com 
jholmes@peelbrimlev.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Helix Electric of Nevada, LLC 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b), I ce1iify that I am an employee of PEEL BRIMLEY, 

LLP, and that on this./~day of July, 2019, I caused the above and foregoing document, 

HELIX ELECTRIC OF NEV ADA, LLC'S (i) OPPOSITION TO APCO 

CONSTRUCTION, INC.'S AND SAFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA'S 

MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION AND/OR AMENDMENT TO FINDINGS OF FACT 

AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW; AND (ii) COUNTERMOTION FOR AMENDMENT TO 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, to be served as follows: 

D by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States Mail, in a sealed 
envelope upon which first class postage was prepaid in Las Vegas, Nevada; and/or 

~ pursuant to NEFCR 9, upon all registered parties via the Court's electronic filing 
system; 

D pursuant to EDCR 7.26, to be sent via facsimile; 

D to be hand-delivered; and/or 

D other ______ _ 

to the attomey(s) and/or party(ies) listed below at the address and/or facsimile number indicated 
below: 

.Attornevs for APCO Construction and Safeco Insurance Co. 
John Randall Jefferies, Esq. (rjefferies@fclaw.com) 
Brandi M. Planet, Esq.(bplanet@fclaw.com) 

4?-'A~=~ C---~~~-"=-"-=-"-=---
An employee of PEEL BRIMLEY, LLP 
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BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q You recognize this document?

A Yes.

Q And what is this?

A This is the additional amount from September through

October for extended overhead of that time.

Q The 26,304, correct?

A Yes.

MR. DOMINA:  And then, Chris, if you'd go to page 3

of that document.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q Is this the breakdown that we looked at earlier?

MR. DOMINA:  If you could twist it.  There.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q Is this the breakdown of -- similar to what we saw

for the months of January through August?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Now, looking at -- since --

MR. DOMINA:  Chris, if you can scroll down to the

language right under the table there.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q Okay.  Yeah.  It says -- the second line says,

Project manager based on four hours a day at $65 an hour.

Explain that to me.  How did you come up with that charge?

A Well, there's a certain amount of daily tasks

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JA3728



67

JD Reporting, Inc.

A-16-730091-B | Helix v. APCO | 2019-06-03 | Day 1

performed with each project that you do at Helix.  And I say

Helix, meaning Helix-specific, because at Helix you do about

three if not four times the amount of tasks than the normal

contractor, if you will.  It's a -- basically, a requirement,

part of their systems.  That -- I can't say that it's all four

hours every day.  Some hours -- sometimes it's eight, sometimes

it's six, sometimes it's two.  But on average, that's roughly

what you're spending on each project, roughly, that you're

doing at Helix.

Q Okay.  And so the line item below that or the

description below that says superintendent at four hours a day

at 70 bucks an hour.  How did you come up with that analysis?

A Same principle.  Helix requires extensive amounts of

paperwork from project manager as well as superintendents.

That is, I would say, like I said, three or four times as much

as your average contractor.  So that there's multiple --

there's dailies, there's check-in of equipment, all of this has

to get signed, submitted into the office, and it has to be done

daily performance that supervisors -- Helix feels supervisors

are required to do.

MR. DOMINA:  Okay.  Chris, take -- let's go back to

page 11 of Exhibit 25.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q So we looked at the e-mail where Eddie had forwarded

the two -- the invoices for the two additional months.  Below
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MR. DOMINA:  Okay.  Chris, can you pull that up for

us here?  And then blow it up, because now I'm out of a copy.

I was not going to --

THE COURT:  Well, you gave us a yellow highlighted

version.

MR. DOMINA:  I did.  That's okay.

THE COURT:  Okay.  That okay with you?

MR. JEFFERIES:  Sure.

THE COURT:  All right.  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. DOMINA:  We can make another.  We can replace it

if we need to.  But --

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q So what I'd like you to look at here is, starting in

February --

MR. DOMINA:  Actually, let's go down to March, Chris.

Scroll down.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q So in March, if you look at the total, all of those

weeks are there.  You have March 3rd, 10th, 17th, 24th, and

31st.  Those are all the week ending.  And I calculated, based

on the job cost report, the number of hours that were reflected

in that report.  And it showed for a total of 13 hours for the

month of March 2013.  Do you believe that to be an accurate

reflection of the time that you spent on the project?

A No.
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Q And why would you say that?

A Well, one, as I previously mentioned, at Helix, you

do three to four times the amount of work that you normally do

for contractors.  As a salaried employee, and you have to turn

in a time card at Helix -- you typically work in a project

manager role at Helix, you typically work anywhere from 55 to

60 hours in a week.  I'd say average contractor is more like

45, 55 hours.  So with all the project management duties that

you have -- it's a salaried position -- you're not overly

concerned.  A time card is more of a nuisance to you that you

just start putting time.  You turn in 40 hours, for lack of

better terms.

Also, I can specifically remember a little bit about

this project in that the project management dollars that was

allocated in the cost code was starting to take hits because

the job was running over longer.  So I get graded on

performance.  Although there's a pending claim, it may have

just went away.

So you -- so as you're starting new project that

had -- may have more additional project management time, you

start putting more time over there.  But it doesn't change the

fact that every day, every week, every month you have the

continuous duties that you had to perform from day one.

MR. DOMINA:  So, Chris, scroll down to the bottom of

the table there, April.
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BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q So April shows --

MR. DOMINA:  Whoops, not too far.  Just April.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q April shows 12 hours of time that you worked on that

project, based on what the job cost report reflects; do you

believe that that accurately represents the amount of time that

you would have spent in April of 2013?

A No.

Q And again, can you tell me concisely why you believe

that is?

A Because as long as -- as long at Helix Electric that

the job is open, you are required to do certain daily, weekly,

and monthly tasks that require a certain amount of time for you

to do them in.  So I remember specific here, in late March,

early April, I was starting a big $8 million utility solar

project that -- hey, we got a new job, everything's going good,

this job is going in the extended overhead.  That job was about

a four-month job, it had a lot of project management time in

it.

So I start putting more cost over there.  But it

doesn't change the fact of the duties that I still was required

to do as far as invoicing, approval of construction building

materials, material recs, equipment requests, the norm from

starting from day one.  It just doesn't change.
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A Uh-huh.

Q But you don't get paid for that day?

A Right.

Q Okay.  Here, it says APCO was granted 119 -- and I

guess my question is can you shed some light on what happened

there for APCO to have been granted 119 noncompensatory days?

Because it's not talking about future, it's talking about past,

would you agree?

A It's -- yes.  Because we're already -- what's the

date of this letter?  October 3rd already?

Q Right.

A Yeah.  This is beyond that date, January 11 through

May 10th.  So.

Q Okay.  So is it your understanding that the City

granted APCO an additional 119 noncompensatory days to the

contract?

A Correct.

Q And that would be a decision that the City makes

based on what?

A That was actually the decision of the acting City

manager at that point, so --

Q Okay.

A -- that was not my call.

Q The buck stopped with him?

A Yes.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JA3733



142

JD Reporting, Inc.

A-16-730091-B | Helix v. APCO | 2019-06-03 | Day 1

Q He made that decision?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  And then it goes on to say that further review

of the subject TIAs indicate APCO should be given an additional

61 calendar days of additional time extension but not

compensatory.

A Yes.

Q So if you add the 119 and the 61 --

A Okay.

Q -- you're an engineer, so you probably know that off

the top of your head, right?  I have to get the calculator out.

But I think it's 180 days.

A 180 days, yes.

Q Yeah.

A Right.

Q Do you believe that adding 180 days to a project that

was only a one year -- or scheduled to be one year is a

significant amount of time to increase the project schedule?

A I would say so, yes.

Q Let's take a little bit further look into this

document.  I want to look at this table here.  The very middle

of the table is where you have general conditions showing up,

do you see that?

A I see it.

Q And it says that the general conditions are
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$1,750.65, and do you understand that to be a daily cost -- a

daily price?

A Yes.  Correct.

Q So this price is a daily cost that APCO is

identifying or claiming against the City, but it's not actually

backed up by a job cost report or actual cost, is it?

A I don't recall how they got the 1750.55 per day.  I

don't know.

Q Okay.  But it's a daily -- it's a -- in other words,

if you take a hundred and -- or however many days -- if you

take a hundred days and times it by that, that's the general

conditions that the City was -- would be agreeing to pay --

A Right.

Q -- APCO?

A Correct.

Q All right.  Let's go to the last sentence, just above

that same table.  I guess it's maybe two sentences.  It says,

Given the numerous changes and multiple

delays that occurred during this project, but

not included in your TIAs, the City is

prepared to offer you compensatory days of

165 days from May 10th, 2013, to

October 25th, 2013, for a total amount of

$560,724.16, based on the following

evaluation.
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A Uh-huh.

Q So is it an accurate statement?  If I were to take

165 days and times it by that 1,750, that would be the

number -- the general condition amount that the City agreed to

pay APCO for this delay?

A 165 days from May 10th do not compensate for the

days.  I don't know where they get the 560 because that could

be anything from combination of the general conditions, any of

his descriptions to get to that particular day.

Q Okay.

A That amount.  But it is accurate to say that it's a

quantity times the days.  And how they got the quantity first

or the actual price per day, I don't know.  I don't recall.

Q Okay.  Fair enough.

MR. DOMINA:  Let's go to the second page of that

document, Chris.  I'd like to highlight the -- it's the fourth

paragraph, fifth paragraph down that says, By Agreeing.  You

see that, Chris?  So just blow that bottom half up and he'll

see it.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q Do you see where it says, By agreeing to?

A Uh-huh.  Yes.

Q Okay.  Let's start there.  It talks about -- it says,

By agreeing to and meeting the terms of this offer, it's

understood by both parties that the City waives any and all
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Q Okay.  And did you communicate with Kurk Williams?

A Yes, I did.

Q How often did you communicate with him?

A I'd say two to three times a week.

Q Okay.  Did you ever meet with him in person or just

phone calls?

A Yes, I met with him in person, also telephone calls

or text messages, yes.

Q Okay.  Did you guys ever walk the site together?

A Yes, when he would show up there, first thing we

would walk the site or we had site trucks, well, because the

site was so big, we would drive around and would show him our

progress or any types of delays or, you know, safety issues

that might be of concern to him.

Q Okay.  So you just talked about basically the status

of the project and --

A Yes.

Q -- any issues?

A Yeah.  Anything to do pertaining to Craig Ranch.

Q And did your communications with Mr. Williams

continue till the very end of the project?

A Yes.

Q So as a superintendent, what were some of your

day-to-day responsibilities at the project?

A To supervise and maintain the labor, the equipment,
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subcontractors, perform the safety meetings.  At the beginning

of the job we have safety meetings at the beginning.  Fill out

daily reports, the timecards, attend the weekly subcontractors

meetings with APCO to review the schedule, coordinate

inspections, call up City of North Las Vegas, contact them or

NV Energy or Century Link to schedule inspections prior to any,

you know, work being performed.

Q Okay.  And were you on the project every day that

work was being performed?

A Yes.

Q Until the very end?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Why was it important that you were on site

every day?

A Well, first of all, it would be qualified and trained

to notice and make sure the area's safe for all of our

employees there, and not just Helix employees, other employees

also, conduct those meetings, and I had the OSHA 30 card, so I

was qualified to do all of that.

Q And safe -- Helix is an electrical contractor, right?

A Yes.

Q So there's some significant concerns with

electricity?

A Absolutely.  With the trenching and the layout, you

know, possible hazard of actually hitting some of that stuff.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JA3738



170

JD Reporting, Inc.

A-16-730091-B | Helix v. APCO | 2019-06-03 | Day 1

Q You mentioned contractor meetings; what were those

meetings for?

A It would be in APCO's trailer, usually Marc Yocum

[phonetic] or Noah Holmes would perform those and it would just

state the job -- where the job was at, what -- you know,

where -- okay, here, we're going to go here under this area, or

we're going to go under this area.  We need you, you know, just

scheduling and laying out the work for not just Helix but for

the other subcontractors on that job.

Q And how often were those meetings?

A Once a week.

Q Did everyone attend those, including laborers?

A No.  It would have just been the foreman's

superintendent or supervisors from myself and the other

contractors there.

Q Okay.  So you said that you coordinated work with

other trades?

A Yes.

Q What other trades did you coordinate with?

A It would have been with the plumbers, could be the

plumber, it was some of the steel engineers.  I would have

coordinated with APCO.

Q And why would you have coordinated with APCO?

A Because I was ultimately responsible for laying out

the trenches for them to dig.  They were dig -- doing the
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digging and stuff for us, so it was my -- I had to go out there

with the prints, so I had to evaluate the area:  Is this the

correct place to put a trench?  Or would there some live

utilities or something here?  Should we move this here?  So me

coordinate, me laying it out, that was my responsibility.  And

then from there they could follow the, you know, the marks or

the directive from me.

Q Okay.  And so that's trenching and back hoeing, and

I'm sorry --

A Yeah.

Q -- I interrupted you.  You said plumbers?

A Oh, yeah, I'm sorry.

Q Why would you be coordinating with plumbers?

A Yeah.  With a plumber, we had rest room areas that

were poured in place in concrete.  And in the middle of those

restroom areas would have been plumbing chases.  And in that

plumbing chase, that's where it got kind of crowded.  So we

would have -- it was a subpanel, it was basically a mini

transformer with a panel in there.  And I had to coordinate

with them, can we put it on this wall or this wall?  How are

you running your pipes?  Where are your automatic flushers

going?  How are you mounting your racks?  It's just one of

those deals you just can't throw in there, because then one

guy's going to be on top of the other.

Also, you know, hey, the mirrors and the sinks are
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going right here.  Hey, there might be a GFI -- GFCI receptacle

right there.  You want to make sure it doesn't get installed

where there's an actual, you know, divider, where the urinals

or the stalls are, or if there's a door right there, so it's

behind the door.  It's got to be met so it's accessible and not

in the way of other trades.

Q Okay.

A So just common practice.

Q So as a superintendent, you're basically working with

other trades solving problems that come up on a day-to-day

basis?

A Solving issues that could be problems, just catching

them beforehand.  But yeah, it had -- it's through

communication and preplanning.

Q Okay.  Did you ever coordinate with landscaping?

A Yes.

Q Why?

A To find out where they're running their 2-inch main

water lines.  We didn't want to coincide with them.  We were

doing trenching, find out the depth of their pipes.  So, you

know, we had a minimum depth we have to require, so if we have

to go a little bit deeper, we would go deeper and let them run

on top.  Also where his valves and stuff were located, let him

know, Hey, I'm going to install a pole box here, will this be

in the way of possible sprinkler head location or, you know,
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any of -- or his equipment could go, sometimes he had pedestals

with time clocks and stuff like that.  So it's just

coordination, common practice.

Q Okay.

THE COURT:  Were you doing the trenching or was

somebody else?

THE WITNESS:  APCO was doing the trenching.  They had

a operator.

THE COURT:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  But I was laying it out to where they

had to do the trenching.

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you, sir.

THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.

BY MR. COX:  

Q And you laid it out so that they did it correctly,

correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  So you mentioned inspections.  And we'll get

into some timecards or daily reports that talk about that.  But

just briefly, what's the process to getting an inspection?

A Well, on the prints on, let's just say, for example,

the NV Energy drawings, you know.  We get those drawings,

there's a project number and a phone number there.  So prior to

some of the work, I need to call them up and say, Hey, I'd like

to schedule for a courtesy meeting to meet the inspector and
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let him know what our plan is and where we're going to trench

this.  I just didn't want to start trenching.  You know, you

want to coordinate with him, Hey, are you happy with this

location?  Are you good with this?  So we would call them out

for that.

Then once the -- once that was approved where the

trenching was going to go, APCO would do the digging.  You

know, we'd -- I would make sure after I got done painting the

trenches, I would go out there and make sure the depth of the

trenches were correct, make sure they put sand at the bottom of

the trenches, which is required by NV Energy.  You know, make

sure that the sand was done.  Then we would have to call for

inspection again, same process, calling him up, schedule him to

come out.  Vince would usually come out -- that's the

inspector's name at the time.  He would come out, inspect the

trench, see that it was sanded on the bottom, and they say, Go

ahead, you can install your conduit now.

After the conduit was installed, I would have to call

him up again because as a requirement, NV Energy has sand that

you have to put over the top of their conduits.  They don't

like native soil, because there's rocks and stuff in it, and

possible damage to the -- you know, the conduit and stuff.  So

you have to sand it.  You recall him out, he inspects the sand,

makes sure, you know, it's installed at the proper depth, which

I believe was 12 inches.
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And then after that, they would do their first lift

of dirt, type 2 native, do a compaction, and then they would

put -- we would put the NV Energy tear tape, which identifies

the trench, so if anyone comes behind us and happens to do the

digging, you know, in the first foot or two, they would hit

that tape and that would notify them, hey, there's an NV

Energy, you know, there's a conduit here, so no accidents would

occur.  So.

Q And so you participated in all those inspections?

A Yeah, I called all of those.  I walked with the

inspector and we made sure he passed it and once they passed, I

would relay it to either Mark or Noah, say, Hey, Vince passed

this trench, you can go ahead and backfill.  And, you know,

when do you think you're going to have it done?  Okay.  And

then I'll call up the inspection, say, Hey, can you come back

out on this date?  Schedule it for then and then come out and

do that.

Q When you say Mark or Noah, who are they with?

A Mark Yocum and Noah Holmes, they were the

superintendents for APCO Construction.

Q Okay.  And would inspectors ever talk to take

instructions from laborers?

A No.  They're -- no, they would only report to me.

Q Okay.  You said earlier when you were describing your

daily duties, that you ran safety inspections.  Can you tell me
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about that?

A Well, before we start every day, so it's Helix policy

every day to do a safety inspection.  We have certain topics

that are just refreshers, you know, and then also do safety

inspections that actually pertain to that job.  That job had a

lot of heavy equipment and open trenches, so a lot of my safety

meetings would be on heavy equipment, you know, what to watch

out for, make sure you have your proper PPE on, you know,

traffic -- you know, hardhat, gloves, glasses, proper attire,

your boots and stuff like that.

So, you know, one day we might do heavy equipment,

the next day it would probably be -- because here were are in

the desert, it's 113 out, it would be heat exhaustion and

heatstroke.  You know, we've got to make sure not only myself,

because, you know, I'll be in the trailer lot doing some of the

paperwork, but the other guys working around their other

workers, Hey, keep an eye on so-and-so, it's getting hot out,

you know, does he look a little flushed, does he need some

water?  Let's get him in the shade.  So just -- it's just

different safety meetings every day, just as a reminder, Hey,

guys, this is what's happening on the job, we need to watch out

for each other.

Q Okay.  And you've coordinated these safety meetings?

A Yeah, every morning I did.

Q Okay.
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A Everyone signed in, and I coordinated the meetings.

I picked the topic.

Q And then did you also check the areas that you're

working in to ensure that they were safe?

A Oh, absolutely.  Because each night, you know, Craig

Ranch Park there's a lot of traffic out there, so sometimes you

get vagrants in at night or kids that come in at night, like to

mess around.  And even though the night before, you know, when

we leave, we make sure our barricades are up and everything's

safe, sometimes you would come in, the wind would come up,

barricades would be down, so we'd have to go back, you know,

say, hey, guys, let's get the caution tape back up here.

Are there any new hazards?  There's other trades and

stuff that are in those work areas, you know, we do a safety

check where we check all of our extension cords and all of our

tools to make sure they're working properly.  I'm not sure

every other sub out there does that.  So it's my

responsibility, if my guys are in your work area, and say

you're the plumber, I'm going to physically -- I'm going to go

and take a look and just make sure your cord is okay.  If your

cord happens to be frayed and I notice some, you know, the

insulation is ripped off and there's a possible chance for my

guys to get zapped or electrocuted, you know, if I power off

the generator, I'm going to tell them, Hey, let's get -- let's

stop or at least let the plumber, hey, let's take this cord out
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of there, why don't you use our cord to make it a safe

environment.

Because also goes for iron workers.  You know, they

use Hilti ramset guns with.22 caliber shots in them, you know,

powder actuated tools, and sometimes you find those laying on

the ground with an empty shell or a shot in it.  Well, if you

happen to kneel down, you know, and you don't see that shot,

and you kneel down on that, that thing can go off and do some

serious damage not only either to your foot or your knee, it

wouldn't be a pretty sight.  So those are just issues and

you've got to take care of it.

Q Yeah.  And you do that every day, wherever you guys

were working to make sure you guys were safe?

A Every area we go in has got to be inspected to make

sure it's safe.

Q Okay.  Did you create daily job reports?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  And we're going to go ahead and turn through

some of those.

MR. COX:  Chris, if you could, it's Joint Exhibit 5.

THE WITNESS:  Is there a book you want me to grab or?

MR. COX:  They're going to --

THE COURT:  It should be n the first volume --

MR. COX:  -- pull up on the screen --

THE COURT:  -- or you can look on the screen.
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MR. DOMINA:  Okay.

THE COURT:  Because you will walk in with somebody

who is whining and still saying stuff, and I'll say, Oh, gosh,

guys, I've got to start my trial.

Have a nice evening.

(Proceedings recessed for the evening at 4:47 p.m.) 

-oOo- 

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly 

transcribed the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled 

case. 

 

                              _______________________________ 

                              Dana L. Williams 
                              Transcriber 
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handle that myself.  I could take care of all the paperwork,

the documentations, the drawings, the updates, and if any work

that was delayed could be released, I could handle it at that

time myself.

Q So you're still doing obviously the superintendent

work with the paperwork, the as-builts, the safety inspections,

all of that even though you're the only guy there?

A Yes.  That's correct.

Q And you said as work is released you could get it.

What do you mean by that?

A Well, you might want to go over to a certain area,

and it's still not ready for you to install that.  You know,

there's quite a delay.  Hey, there's an issue right here.  So

then I would probably go to another area, see if we could

possibly take care of some of the items in the other area and

stuff.

Q So you're still performing work as that work is

released to you and available to you?

A Correct.

Q So if you had let's say the four guys that you

previously had back on the site, would you be able to get that

work done quicker?

A It wouldn't be cost effective.  I mean, I could do

that myself.  Quicker, yeah, but at the time, if it's not

ready, they'd be standing around twiddling their thumbs, and
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turning it over, you know, you're going to have the grand

opening at the park.  There was some existing light poles out

there that, you know, we didn't have to deal with.  Some of

those lights were not working, were not functional.  So I would

just bring it to their attention.  Hey, you know, you either

need to order fuses, new lamps or ballasts, and we would just

walk the site showing them, hey, this is the new fixtures that

Helix installed.  These were the existing fixtures that we

didn't install.  That would be a North Las Vegas punch list,

you know, for them to repair that before the grand opening.

Q Okay.  Thank you.  And then it says return Site Truck

Number 66.  What is the site truck?

A That would be our work site truck to where we haul

material, tools and stuff around since the park is so big.  You

know, we could be in multiple areas different times.  So that's

truck that we got from our tool department and stuff also.

Q Okay.  So as of 10 -- October 10th, 2013, or up

until October 10th, 2013, the site truck was on site?

A That's correct.  Number 66.  Yes.

Q Okay.  On average, how much time would you say you

spent doing superintendent work or the actual physical work?

A To break it in between, it would probably be 50-50 or

slightly more.  Because closing out a job, you'll be doing a

lot of documentation and files and reports and the blueprint

drawings, you know, the as-builts, turning over the files, you
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know, leasing it, walking with North Las Vegas and the

inspectors, make sure they're approving, you know, all of our

methods and means that we did.  So towards the end, towards

finishing off a job like that, it would be more towards the

superintendent's side I would say.

MR. COX:  Okay.  I don't have any other questions.

Thank you.

THE COURT:  Cross-examination.

MR. JEFFERIES:  Yes, Your Honor.  May I do it from

counsel table?

THE COURT:  It's between you and Jill.

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JEFFERIES:  

Q Good morning, sir.

A Good morning.  I hope you enjoyed your vacation.

Q Last night you mean?

A Yeah.

Q Sir, you've gone through a number of duties, be it

coordinating inspections, doing paperwork.  Did you perform

those duties in 2012 as well?

A That would have been Rick Clement when he was there.

Q Okay.  And he was the?

A He was the superintendent.

Q Okay.  And when did he stop serving as the

superintendent?
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THE COURT:  Do you remember something about actuators

going missing?

THE WITNESS:  Actuators going missing?

THE COURT:  If you don't that's okay.

THE WITNESS:  I write off the -- the only actuators I

could think is if it would be some in the irrigation pond, or

the other actuators would be for the plumbers and that -- but

that would be it.  So honestly, no, not off the top of my head.

THE COURT:  Okay.  After May 3rd, 2013, when you

didn't have the other guys at the site anymore, can you give me

an estimate of how many hours per day you worked on the project

realtime.

THE WITNESS:  Actually hands on?

THE COURT:  Hands on.

THE WITNESS:  I'd say the best -- the best and most

honest thing would be about a 50-50 time.  The amount of

paperwork that it takes to consume and start on that and

checklists and the safety responsibilities we have -- because

as a single father I'm going home safe -- so we have to be safe

and the actual work, that would be my most honest answer.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.

THE COURT:  Redirect.

MR. COX:  I have no redirect, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.
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THE COURT:  Can everybody get here by 9:00?

MR. DOMINA:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  We'll see you then.

Have a nice evening.

(Proceedings concluded for the evening at 4:47 p.m.) 

-oOo- 

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly 

transcribed the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled 

case. 

 

                              _______________________________ 

                              Dana L. Williams 
                              Transcriber  
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 LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA JUNE 5, 2019, 9:04 A.M. 

* * * * * 

THE COURT:  So you ready?

MR. JEFFERIES:  Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  I was trying to remember last night,

Mr. Domina, how many times Mr. Pelan has been in front of me

because he's at settlement conferences and proceedings, and he

mentioned one of the cases yesterday, a project I had done the

settlement conference on, and I had forgotten that one.

JOE PELAN  

 [having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn, 

testified as follows:] 

THE COURT:  It makes you feel old.

THE CLERK:  Thank you.  Please be seated.  Please

state and spell your name for the record.

THE WITNESS:  Joe Pelan.  J-o-e, P-e-l-a-n.

THE COURT:  And I don't even want to count how many

cases Helix has been involved in.

MR. JEFFERIES:  May I approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT:  You can.

MR. JEFFERIES:  May I approach?

THE COURT:  Yes, you can.

(Pause in the proceedings.) 

THE COURT:  Next in order.

So I am suffering from allergies pretty bad today.
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for whatever reason for that's about 25 percent or so of those

fixtures.  And why they weren't delivered, I do not know.  They

were way late.

Q Okay.  So that's what you meant --

THE COURT:  The ones from Graybar were way late?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q Okay.  And so that's what you meant by sort of?

A Yes, sir.

Q So they weren't going to pay for it.  It wasn't in

their contract to pay for it, but you said that it was this

kind of side deal that Victor was going to, to help you out a

little bit, do the submittals and submit the purchase order to

Graybar?

A Yes.  He had them send it to me directly.

Q Using APCO's money to pay for it?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay.  Did you at the time that you were told this

information from Mr. Duvall, did you reach out to Victor or

anyone else at Helix and, one, either tell them about this

issue, or two, give them an opportunity to present some sort of

defense or support to rebut what the city was saying here?

A No.

Q Okay.  And why didn't you do that?

A Because I handle each situation one at a time.
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Q Did you feel that you -- and, in fact, today you

testified, well, you thought there might have been some merit,

but, you know, you really didn't like that.  Were there -- did

you want to rebut?  Did you want to reject the city's position

that 119 days of that nine-month delay were compensable?

A You're asking me what I wanted to do?

Q Did you feel that you should have rejected those 119

days?

A Well, when there's this much money involved, I go see

the owners.  And I said, look --

Q Just let me stop you there.  Owners of APCO?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay.  Thank you.  Keep going.

A Sorry.  And I said we put in a million dollar change

order.  I don't know if it's the timing of this.  It's not the

timing of this document.  They're offering 560.  Do you want me

to take it and not file a claim, and they said, yes.

Q Okay.  So APCO made a business decision to take what

was being offered, which admittedly was 119 days less than what

it was seeking by way of its initial change order request; is

that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Okay.  And you made that business decision without

including any discussion with your subcontractors, including

Helix; correct?
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A That's correct.

Q Let's take a look at the -- this table here.  The

general conditions, the total of -- if you go to the far right,

it says daily price $365 or 365 days.  There's a

Number 1,107 --

THE COURT:  What exhibit are you on?

MR. DOMINA:  Oh.  I thought I was still on

Exhibit 22.  Sorry, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  I was just checking.

BY MR. DOMINA:  

Q Okay.  So that table there, you look to the far

right, 1,750?

A There must be something in here.  Sorry.

Q Allergies?

A Something.

THE COURT:  So it's not just me?

THE WITNESS:  No.  It's something in here I think.

MR. DOMINA:  Mine start in the spring for some --

Whatever it is in the spring I get.

THE COURT:  Well, we got a lot of rain this year.  So

a lot of things are blooming, and a lot of people are sick.

MR. DOMINA:  Yeah.

THE COURT:  Which means everybody at the courthouse

is sick because, boy do we get a lot of the public in here.

MR. DOMINA:  A lot of the, yes, very diverse public
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I'm just going to just briefly say if there is a no damages for

delay clause, and it was talked about, NRS 338.485 clearly says

that on public works projects it's void and unenforceable if

the delay was either so unreasonable as to amount to an

abandonment of the project, which nine months was, or if it's

caused by the city's decision to significantly add to the

duration of the project.

And that's why I asked Mr. Pelan who made the

decision.  He said, We did.  Because now we fall under the

fourth prong of that section and clearly show that no damages

for delay is void and unenforceable under this situation.

The other argument that they say is we didn't follow

our -- the claim procedure that's in the prime contract and/or

the subcontract.  That goes again to this concept that they

were telling us that the city rejected our claim based on the

lack of backup.

So that was a misrepresentation based on what

Mr. Pelan -- or what Mr. Llamado was saying from the city.  How

could we have gone through any appeals process, any appeal that

we tried to effectuate would have been a -- a futile effort

because it wasn't being appealed under the right assumption.

If we had gone and tried to do an appeal as they're saying, the

appeal process would have been a hoax because it wasn't being

rejected for backup.  It was being rejected because they didn't

put it into their own claim.  So again, they're trying to use
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ATTORNEYS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Even though they disagree on several

points.

THE CLERK:  June 21st for the status check.

THE COURT:  Ramsey.

THE MARSHAL:  Yes, ma'am.  

THE COURT:  If you would, I have one book that I've

made notes in.

THE MARSHAL:  Okay.

THE COURT:  I have it.  But would you put these

others in a box and not let them touch the money source box

because although I've done the draft of my decision, it's not

out of the office yet.

So all right, guys.  See you later.

(Proceedings concluded at 11:55 a.m.) 

-oOo- 

ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly 

transcribed the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled 

case. 

 

                              _______________________________ 

                              Dana L. Williams 
                              Transcriber   
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